1968

Lonnie E. Strong v. John W. Turner : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS CONTINUED

It is submitted that appellant was guilty of escape from illegal constitutional confinement.

And it is further submitted that the State of Kansas has a ——— placed on appellant for escape from prison.

The facts in the original incarceration in the State of Kansas, the records will bear out. Are briefly as follows. Appellant was in the State of Kansas, are that appellant was charged with the crime of Grand Larceny to which he entered without ever being — of his rights or the right to counsel, and subsequently not represented by Counsel at any stage of the proceedings against appellant by Counsel. And after the plea of guilty was entered to the alleged Crime of Grand Larceny this appellant was sentenced in the State of Kansas, to the term prescribed by law in the State for being an Habitual Criminal a Crime for which he had — been accused of and was in fact unaware of.,

ARGUMENT

POINT 1

MAINTIFF WAS CHARGED IN AN IMPROPER INFORMATION IN THE DISTRICT COURT WITH THE CRIME OF ARMED ROBBERY A CRIME WHICH HAS NOT BEEN COMMITTED AND DIFFERENT FROM THE — OFFENSE ALLEGED IN THE ORIGINAL COMPLAINT

Appellant will submit this point on the Court records of the Courts.

POINT 2

COURT APPOINTED COUNSEL WAS NEGLIGENT SO FAR AS TO BEING INCOMPETENT RENDERING APPELLANT TO HAVE BEEN DENIED THE EFFECTIVE REPRESENTATION BY COUNSEL

Appellant submits that he was not effectively represented by Court Appointed Counsel in the case at bar. In that Counsel induced Appellant in the Case at Bar to enter under duress through Coercive — a Plea of Guilty to an offense he is Not Guilty of.,

Counsel failed to consult with appellant as often as necessary in order to elicit matters of defense, or ascertain that possible defenses were unavailable. In fact Counsel failed to conduct appropriate investigations factual, and legal in order to determine what lines of defense could be developed.

In the case at bar Counsel was not even interested enough to see that appellant was sentenced for an offense that had not been committed.

Counsel was more interested in unloading the Court Appointed Counsel as quickly as possible. Subsequently Counsel Induced Appellant the Co-Defendant to enter a mentally Coerced Plea of Guilty - an offense he was innocent of. A plea of guilty must be entered freely and voluntarily by one competent to fully understand and - the consequences thereof.

In the case at bar the requirements of the decided case authorities set forth in the Federal Courts and the United States Supreme Court were not complied with. Starting with the decision in the case of Johnson v. Wainwright, 372 U.S. 335, 9 L. Ed. 2d 799, 83 S. Ct. 1030. Id. v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 59, 10 Law Edition 193, and 83 Supreme Court 1030. The landmark precedents of Escobedo v. Illinois, 378 U.S. 97 (1964). And Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436 (1966). and - Moore v. New Jersey, 384 U.S. 719. The most recent being the case of Turner v. Turner, No. 39 Misc. Decided October 14, 1968. The United States Court of Appeals set forth the basic and fundamental features that are constitutionally essentially required in regard to the right to Counsel in the case of an indigent. See: Criminal Law - Vol. 4 No. 2 Coles v. Peyton, F. 2d (4th Cir. 1-6-68).

The Court started by stating that there were certain principles attached to the Constitutional right to Counsel.

1. Counsel for an indigent should be appointed promptly.
2. Counsel should be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be able to defend an accused.
3. Counsel must confer with his client without undue delay and when as necessary, to advise him of his rights and to elicit - lines of defense or to ascertain that potential defenses are -

4. Counsel must conduct appropriate investigations both moral and legal, to determine if matters of defense can be developed, and to allow himself enough time for reflection and preparation for trial.

The Court went on to state that "an omission or failure to comply with these requirements constitutes a denial of effective representation of Counsel, unless the State, on which is cast the burden of proof once a violation of these precepts is shown, can establish each of prejudice thereby."

The plea of guilty entered in the case at bar is Constitutionally impermissible, for the reason that said plea was obtained as a result of inducement and through coercive methods. Appellant cites for the Court the case of Waley v. Johnson, 316 U.S. 101, - 31 S. Ct. 964, where the United States Supreme Court stated that:

"A conviction on a plea of guilty coerced by a Federal Law Enforcement Officer is not consistent with due process. The Waley case supra; goes on to say that - where a plea of guilty is so coerced that it is deprived of validity to support the conviction, the coercion likewise deprives the plea of validity as a waiver of accused rights to assail the conviction." The case at bar represents such a case."

"The case of Machibrodre v. United States, 368 U.S. 437, 82 S. Ct. 510, the leading authority regarding coerced pleas obtained through inducement. In this case the - United States Supreme Court stated that a plea of guilty if induced by promise or threats which deprive it of - the character of a voluntary act, it is void, and the conviction based on such a plea is open to collateral attack. The Court went on to say that a plea of guilty should not be accepted unless the Court assures itself that the same is completely voluntary and not tainted with any inducements or promises."

ARGUMENT POINT 3

APPELLANT IS ENTITLED TO RELIEF CONCERNING THE
PENDING DETAINER ALLEGING ESCAPE FROM THE KANSAS
STATE PENITENTIARY ON THE BASIS THAT HE WAS --
ILLEGALLY AND UNCONSTITUTIONALLY INCARCERATED IN
THE STATE OF KANSAS

Appellant was illegally and unconstitutionally convicted of the
offense of Grand Larceny, resulting in the imposition of a
fine and sentence for the Crime of being an Habitual Criminal, and
the appellant was not even aware that he was charged with.,

Appellant was not at any time during the proceedings against him
in the State of Kansas, advised of his rights; Nor represented by --
counsel during any stage of the proceedings against him.

In argument on this point the Court is referred to the records
of the State of Kansas.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons the lower Courts decision should of
course be reversed. And the Writ of Habeas Corpus should be granted.