1968

Lonnie E. Strong v. John W. Turner : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF NATURE OF CASE

The appellant, Lonnie E. Strong, appeals from the denial of his writ of habeas corpus.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

Based upon findings of fact, the Honorable Bryant H. Croft after conducting a hearing on appellant's petition concluded that there was no "showing by clear and convincing evidence that there was a mentally coerced plea of guilty to the charge of robbery." The petition was therefore denied.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Respondent submits that the denial of appellant's petition for writ of habeas corpus in the Third District Court should be affirmed.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Lonnie H. Strong was sentenced to the Utah State Prison on September 22, 1965, following his plea of guilty to a charge of robbery. The defendant was represented by court-appointed counsel, Frank Hanson. Mr. Hanson conferred with the defendant and his co-defendant for a short time before the preliminary hearing and then conducted the preliminary hearing in their behalf (T. 3-7). Later, at the time of trial, Mr. Hanson recommended that the appellant plead guilty to the charge based upon the state offer that the charges of attempt to escape and destruction of state property would not be filed by the state. At the hearing on the writ of habeas corpus, counsel for the petitioner had in his possession the transcript of the proceedings below but declined to submit it as evidence (T.14). The only evidence submitted at the hearing was the testimony of the petitioner and his co-defendant, Charles Meredith. The trial court found that the arrangement whereby the charges of attempted escape and destruction of state property were not filed in return for the plea of guilty to the charge of robbery was not in and of itself adequate evidence to prove that the plea of guilty had been coerced.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE PRESENT APPEAL IS NOT SUBJECT MATTER FOR AN EXTRAORDINARY WRIT SUCH AS HABEAS CORPUS BUT RATHER SUBJECT MATTER FOR REGULAR APPELLATE REVIEW.

The petitioner is alleging that he is not guilty of the charge of robbery but rather of grand larceny at the most. The guilt of the petitioner is not a proper issue to be raised in this appeal nor is it proper subject matter for the granting of a writ of habeas corpus. The petitioner is attempting to do what the Utah Supreme Court has previously addressed itself to and has ruled upon as in the case of *Bryant v. Turner*, 19 U.2d 284, 431 P.2d 121 (1967) wherein the court said :

This proceeding is an attempt to do that which should not be done nor countenanced in our procedure: To turn habeas corpus into an appellate review . . . After judgment is entered, there is assured a right of appeal with the proper time to seek redress for any such error of transgression of those rights, i.e., the rights of one accused of crime and safeguards against conviction of the innocent. 19 U.2d at 286.

The writ of habeas corpus is not a substitute for and cannot properly be treated as a regular appellate review. It is an extraordinary remedy which is properly invocable only when the court has no jurisdiction over the person or the offense or where the requirements of law have been so disregarded that the party is substantially and effectively denied the due process of law, or where some fact is shown that it would be unconscionable not to reexamine the conviction. If the contention of error is something which is known or should be known to the party at the time the judgment was entered, it must be reviewed in a manner and within the time permitted by regular prescribed procedure or the judgment becomes final and is not

subject to further attack except in some unusual circumstances as we have mentioned above.

In the case of *Sullivan v. Turner*,U.2d....., 448 P.2d 907 (1968) the Utah Supreme Court said:

The effort to upset this conviction in this manner must be considered in connection with our rules of procedure. When an accused is convicted of a crime, our law requires that any claimed error or defect be corrected by regular appeal within the time allowed by law, and if this is not done, the judgment becomes final. It can then be subjected to collateral attack by an extraordinary writ only when the interest of justice so demand because of some extraordinary circumstance or exigency: e.g., lack of jurisdiction, mistaken identify, where the requirements of law have been so ignored or distorted that the accused has been deprived of "due process of law," or where there is shown to exist some other circumstances that it would be unconscionable not to review the conviction. (Footnotes omitted.)

See also *Brown v. Turner*, 21 U.2d 96, 440 P.2d 968 (1969). Where it otherwise, the regular rules of procedure governing appeals and the limitations of time specified therein would be rendered impotent, *Wise v. Turner*, 21 U.2d 101, 440 P.2d 971 (1968).

As held by the court in those cases, the time for appellate review has long since passed and this is not a case in which the court did not have jurisdiction nor in which any of the other extraordinary circumstances have been shown. Respondent submits that the necessary subject mat-

ter is not in evidence in the case at bar and that therefore the denial of the writ should be affirmed.

POINT II

AN AGREEMENT TO DROP SOME CHARGES AGAINST THE PETITIONER IN RETURN FOR HIS PLEA OF GUILTY TO THE CHARGE OF ROBBERY WAS NOT IN AND OF ITSELF MENTAL COERCION. THE PETITIONER HAS FAILED TO SUSTAIN THE BURDEN OF PROOF THAT HE IS BEING DETAINED AS THE RESULT OF MENTALLY COERCED PLEA OF GUILTY.

It is important to point out at the onset that the petitioner does not allege mentally coercive tactics other than if he would plead guilty to the charge of robbery the state would not file the charge of attempted escape and destruction of state property. As expressed by the Honorable Bryant H. Croft sitting at the hearing on the petition, this in and of itself does not amount to mental coercion.

A holding to the effect that it was such would deprive not only the state of a valuable tool in the prosecution of criminals, but would further deprive many violators of the law of a means of having the harshness of the law ameliorated in the form of a lessor punishment than that to which they could rightfully be subjected. The defendant was free to refuse the offer of the state and defend himself against all charges. The decision was one of strategy which is presented to every accused in proceeding with the defense of his own innocence. In this respect, it is important

to note that the petitioner's counsel after having evaluated the facts and the law involved recommended that the defendants in this case plead guilty. It would be unjust for this court to hold that as a matter of due process and procedure, that counsel in future cases defending those accused of crimes could not recommend such a plea because of the fact that in this case the petitioner claims such advice amounted to or aided in a mental coercion. Respondent submits that neither it nor this court should be prepared to admit that this is or should be the law.

The petitioner has the burden of showing by clear and convincing proof that he has been denied some fundamental constitutionally protected right in order to justify the issuance of the extraordinary writ of habeas corpus. *McGuffey v. Turner*, 18 U.2d 354, 423 P.2d 166 (1967). All that was presented in the hearing below was the testimony of the petitioner and his partner in crime, Charles Meredith, to the effect that the agreement presented to them by the state along with the advise of their attorney amounted to tactics which constituted mental coercion.

In *Dexter v. Crouse*, 192 Kan. 151, 386 P.2d 262 (1963), the court held:

It is presumed an attorney appointed to represent an accused in a criminal case discharged all duties supposed of him by our statute and this presumption is not overcome by the uncorroborated statements of the petitioner in a habeas corpus proceeding.

The court stated further:

The unsupported and uncorroborated statements of the petition in a habeas corpus proceeding do not sustain the burden of proof or justify the granting of a writ where the judgment rendered is regular on its face and entitled to a presumption of regularity and validity.

The Utah Supreme Court in the case of *Sullivan v. Turner, supra*, stated:

It should be pointed out that there is a basic fallacy in the propositions urged by the petitioner: He assumes that the trial court was obliged to believe his evidence and draw conclusions favorable to him therefrom. The law is to the contrary. Petitions in habeas corpus and coram nobis are generally regarded as being analagous procedurally to civil proceedings. The petitioner has the burden of persuading the trial court by perponderance of evidence facts which will entitle him to relief. When the trial judge has made findings of facts and entered judgment thereon, they are entitled to the presumption of correctness on appeal the evidence is surveyed in the light favorable to them; and if there is any reasonable basis in the evidence to support them, they will not be overturned. (Foot-notes omitted.)

Respondent submits that the appellant has not sustained his burden of showing that there was a mentally coerced plea and further submits that there is more than reasonable basis in the evidence to support the denial of the petition for habeas corpus.

POINT III

THE POINT RAISED BY APPELLANT OF LACK OF COMPETENT REPRESENTATION IS NOT PROPERLY BEFORE THE COURT ON APPEAL.

In petitioner's brief submitted on appeal, it is now his contention that the court-appointed counsel was negligent insofar as to be incompetent in rendering appellant representation at the time of the guilty plea and as such the defendant was denied the effective representation of counsel. This contention was not raised at the hearing below and the evidence introduced there was only the statements of the petitioner and his co-defendant to the effect that they met with their counsel only briefly. Judge Croft at the hearing below stated :

Well, in the Lonnie Strong case I don't think that there is any showing by clear and convincing evidence that there was a mentally coerced plea of guilty to the charge of armed robbery. I think that's the only point raised in this habeas corpus petition and for that reason the petition of Lonnie Strong for the issuance of writ of habeas corpus is denied. (T.23)

The petitioner cannot now raise issues for the first time on appeal and to do so would amount to a travesty of the rules of procedure. *Dodge v. Turner*,U.2d....., 445 P.2d 707 (1968). See also *Wood v. Turner*, 19 U.2d 284, 431 P.2d 121 (1967).

POINT IV

THIS COURT IS NOT THE COMPETENT COURT TO ENTERTAIN THE QUESTION OF THE DE-

TAINER ALLEGING ESCAPE FROM THE KANSAS STATE PENETENTIARY.

The petitioner has alleged that there is an unlawful detainer against him from the State of Kansas for escape from prison. With regards to this escape, he alleges that he was illegally detained in Kansas as the result of failure to properly inform him of his constitutional rights and provide counsel. This issue was properly stricken by the court below at the time of a pretrial hearing on the habeas corpus petition and defense counsel properly did not raise this matter at the time of the hearing (T.15).

It is apparent that the basic principle of law that one state will not attempt to enforce the criminal laws of another is present here. This issue can best be settled in the courts of Kansas at such time as the petitioner has paid his debt to society in this state and returns to the State of Kansas and applies to their court for whatever relief he may be entitled to.

CONCLUSION

Petitioner has failed in his burden to sustain by clear and convincing evidence that his plea of guilty to the charge of robbery was coerced. Petitioner has further failed in his burden to show that the agreement to not file other charges against him in return for the plea of guilty to the charge of robbery was in and of itself mental coercion. The other points raised by appellant in his petition are not properly before the court. For these reasons

it is therefore submitted that the judgment of the lower court should be affirmed.